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VISION STATEMENT 
 
To remain a contributor in the local market and with dedication to serve the needs of our 
valued customers by catering to the requirements of general public at large. 

 
 

MISSION STATEMENT 
 
The Company is situated in a remote area of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa; despite all odds it still has 
the following two missions: 
 
Number one: To contribute to the economy through our business activities, thereby making 

a humble contribution to the local and national sector. 
 
 
Number two: To provide employment to the residents of the surrounding areas, while 

improving their skills through training and development. 
 
 

STATEMENT OF ETHICS AND BUSINESS PRACTICES 
 
The Organization of Khyber Textile Mills Limited (KTML) will be guided by the following 
principles in achieving its organizational objectives by ensuring that: 
 
• Company affairs are being carried out within the framework of existing laws and regulations. 
• Accuracy of the books, record of the Company and its safe custody. 
• Respect of employees, suppliers, agents, customers and shareholders. 
• Timely payment of amounts due to employees, agents and suppliers. 
• To strive for a healthy and safe environment. 
• To safeguard against improper payments or inappropriate use of the Company’s Assets. 
• A drive to ensure that KTML succeeds as a business. 
 
The dealing of Khyber Textile Mills with all stakeholders, including Government and Financial 
Institutions are based on business ethics. Furthermore, in maintaining accounting and financing 
policies and procedures KTML is guided by the Companies Act 2017, Code of Corporate 
Governance and Corporate Regulations.  
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KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA 
 

                            (Rupees in ‘000) 
 

OPERATING: 

2022 2021 
(Restated) 

2020 2019 2018   2017 

 

Net Sales 14,592 9,618 8,062 3,516 1,750      0 

Gross (Loss) Profit 3,776 1,672 1,417 1,096 (1,034)      0 

Operating 

Profit/(Loss) 
(6,303) (9,880) (9,800) (5,096) (7,848)   (9,315) 

Pre Tax Profit/(Loss) (6,303) (9,880) 3,999 (5,416) (8,942)   (9,265) 

After Tax Profit/(Loss) (5,297)   5,411 2,125 (3,546) (10,707)   (6,138) 

 

Tangible Fixed Assets  962,874  973,973  986,074 999,277 428,152 438,544 

Long Term Deposit          89          89          89          89         89         89 

 962,963 974,062 986,163  428,063 438,633 448,647 

 

Current Assets 11,382    8,901    8,989    8,256    5,688    3,345 

Current Liabilities 10,809 (28,207) (47,424) (54,585) (26,089) (41,468) 

Working Capital     573 (19,306) (38,435) (46,329) (38,123) (37,283) 

Share Capital 12,275 12,275 12,275 12,275 12,275 12,275 

Accumulated Losses (17,480) 19,721 (1,150) (10,917) (15,472) (34,957) 
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 
Notice is hereby given that the 61stAnnual General Meeting of the Shareholders of KHYBER TEXTILE 
MILLS LIMITED will be held on Friday, the 21st October, 2022 at the Registered Office of the 
Company, Baldher, District Haripur, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa at 10:00 am to transact the following 
business. 
 
Ordinary Business: 
 
1. To confirm the minutes of the 60th Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders held on                     

27th October, 2021. 
 
2. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended 30th 

June, 2022 together with the Directors’ and Auditor’s Reports thereon. 
 
3. To elect seven (7) Members to the Board of Directors as fixed by the Board of Directors in 

accordance with the Companies Act 2017. The following existing Directors who retire under the 
Companies Act 2017 and being eligible have offered themselves for re-election as Directors of the 
Company for the next three (3) years commencing from 25th October 2022.                          

 
     1) Mr. Aurangzeb Khan            4)  Mr. Adam Jadoon  
     2) Mr. Amanullah Khan Jadoon         5)  Mr. Hassan Ovais (Proposed Independent Director)                 
     3) Mr. Muhammad Bahauddin          6)  Mrs. Aamna Jadoon 
 
    Whereas, 7) Mr. Nusrat Iqbal, being eligible and has consented to act as a candidate for the position 

of 2nd Independent Director of the Company for the next (3) years. 
 
4. To appoint Auditors of the Company for the year 2022-2023 and to fix their remuneration. The 

Board of Directors has recommended M/s Clarkson Hyde Saud Ansari Chartered Accountants, who 
have retired and being eligible have offered themselves for re-appointment to act as Auditors of the 
Company for the year 2022-2023. 

 
5. To transact any other business of the Company with the permission of the Chair.  
 
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD 
 
For Khyber Textile Mills Limited 
 
 
Sadaqat Khan 
Company Secretary 
26th September, 2022 
 
NOTES: 
1. The Share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 13th October 2022 to                     

21st October, 2022 (both days inclusive). Physical transfers / CDC Transactions IDs received at the 
Company’s Registrar (F.D. Registrar Services) at close of business on 12th, October 2022 will be 
considered in time to determine the above-mentioned entitlement and to attend and vote at the 
meeting. 
 

2. Members attending the Meeting shall bring along their original Computerized National Identity 
Card (CNIC) or Passport at the time of attending the Meeting. 

 
3. A Member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the General Meeting 
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may only appoint another Member as proxy to attend and vote in place of 
the Member at the Meeting. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at 
Company's registered office duly stamped and signed not later than 48 hours 
before the time of holding the Meeting. A Member cannot appoint more than one 
proxy. Copies of both shareholder's and beneficial owners Computerized National Identity Card 
(CNIC/NICOP/POC) or Passport must be attached with the proxy form. 
 

4. The CDC/sub account holders are required to follow the under mentioned 
guidelines:− 

a) For attending the meeting. 
i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub−account holder and/ or 
the person, whose securities are in group account and their registration 
details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall authenticate identity by 
showing his/her original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or 
original passport at the time of attending the meeting. 
 
ii) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution / power of attorney with 
specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced at the time of meeting. 
 
b) For appointing proxies:  
i)    In case of individuals, the account holder or sub−account holder and/ or the person, whose 

securities are in group account and their registration detail is uploaded as per the regulations, 
shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement. 
 

ii) The proxy form shall be witnessed by the two persons whose names, 
addresses and Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC/NICOP/POC) or Passport number 
shall be mentioned on the form. 
 

iii) Copies of Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC/NICOP/POC) or the passport of the 
beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form. 

 
iv) The proxy shall produce his/her original Computerized National Identity Card 

(CNIC/NICOP/CPOC) or original passport at the time of the meeting. 
 
v)   In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney with 

specimen signature shall be submitted to the Company along with proxy form. 
 

5. Members are requested to promptly notify any change in their mailing address, E−mail address and 
contact details to the Company Share Registrar Office. Members, having physical shares, are 
advised to intimate any change in their registered address and the shareholders who have not yet 
submitted photocopies of their Computerized Identity Cards are requested to send the same at the 
earliest. 
 

6. Shareholders who wish to receive notice of the General Meeting through e-mail are requested to 
provide, through a letter duly signed by them, their particulars, i.e. Name, Folio/ CDC A/C No., E-
mail Address, Contact Number and copy of CNIC.  

 
7. Any person (including a retiring Director) who seeks to contest election of directors shall file with 

the Company at its registered office Baldher, District Haripur, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa not later than 
14 days before the said meeting his / her intention to offer himself / herself for the election of the 
directors in terms of Section 159(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 together with: 

 
(i) Notice of his / her intention to stand for election, along with duly completed 

and signed Form 28 giving his / her consent to act as Director of the Company if elected (under 
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Section 167(1) of the Companies Act, 2017), and certify that he/she is not ineligible to become 
a Director as set out in the provisions of the Companies Act 2017 Under Section 153 or under 
any applicable laws, Rules and Regulations; and that he / she confirms to hold the qualification 
shares in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. 
 

(ii) Detailed profile along with office address to be placed on the Company's website seven days 
prior to the date of election.  

 
(ii)  Declaration in respect of being compliant with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code 

of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 and the eligibility criteria as set out in the 
Companies Act, 2017 to act as the director of a listed Company. 
 

(iii) Attested copy of valid CNIC and NTN, along with proof of active taxpayer status. 
 

(iv) Declaration by Independent Director(s) under Clause 6(2) of the Listed Companies (Code of          
Corporate Governance) Regulation 2017 and Section 166 of the Companies Act, 2017. 
 

(v)  Undertaking on non-judicial stamp paper that he / she meet the requirements of sub− 
regulation (1) of Regulation 4 of the Companies (Manner and Selection of Independent 
Directors) Regulations, 2018. 
 

8. If the number of persons who offer themselves to be elected is more than the number of directors     
fixed under sub-section (1) of section 159 of the Companies Act, 2017, then the company shall 
provide its members with options of e-voting or voting by postal ballot in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018. 
 

9. Pursuant to Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018, for the purpose of election of Directors 
and for any other agenda item subject to the requirements of Sections143 and 144 of the Companies 
Act 2017, members will be allowed to exercise their right of vote through postal ballot, that is 
voting by post or through any electronic mode, in accordance with requirements and procedure 
contained in the aforesaid regulations. 
 

10. Shareholders who wish to participate through e-voting, kindly provide immediately 
through a letter duly signed by them, i.e. Name, Folio/ CDC Account No., E−mail 
address, contact number to the share registrar of the Company (F.D  Registrar Services (Private) 
Limited, 1705, 17th Floor, Saima Trade Tower-A, I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi. 

 
11. Shareholders may participate in the meeting via video− link facility. If the Company receives a 

demand (at least 7 days before the date of meeting) from shareholder(s) holding an aggregate 10% 
or more shareholding residing in any other city, to participate in the meeting through video link, the 
Company will arrange video link facility in that city. Shareholders, who wish to participate through 
video−link facility, are requested to fill in Video Link Facility Form available at Company's 
website and send a duly signed copy to the Registered Address of the Company. It may be noted 
that no person other than the Member or proxy holder can attend the meeting through video link 
facility. 

 
12. Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 (Act) which requires all companies to replace shares issued 

by them in physical form with shares to be issued in the Book-Entry-form within a period not 
exceeding four years from the date of the promulgation of the Act. In order to ensure full 
compliance with the provisions of the aforesaid Section 72 and to benefit from the facility of 
holding shares in the Book-Entry-Form, the shareholders who still hold shares in physical form are 
requested to convert their shares in the Book-Entry-Form. For further information please contact 
the Company’s Share Registrar. 
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STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 166 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2017 
 
Section 166 of the Companies Act 2017 requires that a statement of material facts is annexed to the 
notice of the general meeting called for the purpose of election of directors which shall indicate the 
justification for choosing the appointee for appointment as independent director. 
 
Being a listed company, KHYBER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED is required to have two 
independent directors on its Board in accordance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2017. Accordingly, the Company shall ensure that two independents are 
elected in accordance with the procedures for election of directors laid down in Section 159 of the 
Companies Act 2017. After the contestants file their notice / intention to stand for elections, the 
Company shall apply following criteria for choosing the appointee for appointment as independent 
director: 
 
Inclusion of name of independent directors in the data bank maintained by Pakistan 
Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG) duly authorized by SECP. 
 
Respective competencies, diversity, skill, knowledge and experience of the election 
contestants shall be assessed. 
 
The Company shall exercise due diligence before selecting a person from the data 
bank that the contestant meets the independence criteria as mentioned in Section 
166(2) of the Companies Act, 2017. 
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 سلاجا ہنلااس ےئارب سٹون
 

 زورب 2022 ربوتکا 21 سلاجا ہنلااس ںاو 61 اک زرڈلوہ رئیش ےک ڈٹیمل زلم لئاٹسکیٹ ربیخ ہک ےہ یتاج ید علاطا
 یک روما لیذ ہجردنم ںیم هاوخنوتخپ ربیخ ،روپ یرہ علض ریھڈلاب ،سفآ ڈرٹسجر ےک ینپمکےجب 10:00 حبص ہعمج
  ۔اگوہ دقعنم ےئل ےک یہد ماجنا

 :رابوراک ماع

 ۔ قیدصت یک سٹنم ےک گنٹیم لرنج ہنلااس ںیو60 یک زرڈلوہ رئیش هدقعنم وک 2021 ربوتکا 27 .1

 رپ نا ،ےنرک لصاح وک سٹنؤاکا هدش ٹڈآ ہنلااس ےک ینپمک ےیل ےک لاس ےلاو ےنوہ متخ وک 2022 نوج 30 .2
 ۔ےیل ےک ےنانپا ھتاس ےک سٹروپر یک زرٹیڈآ روا زرٹکیرئاڈ رپ سا روا ےنرک روغ

 تاس ےیل ےک زرٹکیرئاڈ فآ ڈروب هدرک ررقم ےس فرط یک زرٹکیرئاڈ فآ ڈروب قباطم ےک 2017 ٹکیا زینپمک .3
 ںیہ ےکچ وہ رئاٹیر تحت ےک 2017 ٹکیا زینپمک وج زرٹکیرئاڈ هدوجوم لیذ ہجردنم ۔انرک باختنا اک ناربمم )7(
 ےلگا ےلاو ےنوہ عورش ےس 2022 ربوتکا 25 ۔ےہ ایک شیپ ےیل ےک باختنا هرابود وک دوخ ےن ںوہنا ،ںیہ لہا روا
 ۔رپ روط ےک زرٹکیرئاڈ ےک ینپمک ےیل ےک ںولاس )3( نیت

                     نودج مدآ بانج )4             ناخ بیزگنروا بانج)1     

 )رٹکیرئاڈ دازآ هزوجم( سیوا نسح بانج )5        نودج ناخ الله ناما بانج )2     

 نودج ہنمآ زسم )6            نیدلاؤاہب دمحم بانج  )3     

 رٹکیرئاڈ دازآ ےرسود ےک ینپمک ےیل ےک ںولاس )3( ےلگا ےن ںوہنا روا ںیہ لہا لابقا ترصن بانج )7 ،ہکبج    
 ۔ےہ ید یدنماضر یک ےنرک ماک رپ روط ےک راودیما ےیل ےک ےدہع ےک

 فآ ڈروب ۔انرک نیعت اک ےضواعم ےک نا روا یررقت یک زرٹیڈآ ےک ینپمک ےیل ےک 2023-2022 لاس .4
 ںیہ ےکچ وہ رئاٹیر وج ،ےہ یک شرافس یک سٹنٹنؤاکا ڈرٹراچ یراصنا دوعس ڈیئاہ نسکرلاک زرسیم ےن زرٹکیرئاڈ
 یررقت هرابود ےیل ےک ےنرک ماک رپ روط ےک رٹیڈآ ےک ینپمک ےیل ےک 2023-2022 لاس ےن ںوہنا ،ںیہ لہا روا
 ۔ےہ یک شکشیپ یک

 `۔انرک رابوراک ارسود یئوک اک ینپمک ےس تزاجا یک رئیچ .5

 ےس مکح ےک ڈروب

 ےیل ےک ڈٹیمل زلم لئاٹسکیٹ ربیخ
 

 ناخ تقادص

 یرٹیرکیس ینپمک

 2022 ،ربمتس 26

 
:سٹون  

 ربوتکا 12 ۔یگ ںیہر دنب )تیمس ند ںونود( کت 2022 ربوتکا 21 ےس 2022 ربوتکا 13 ںیباتک یک یلقتنم یک صصح ےک ینپمک .1
 یس یڈ یس/زرفسنارٹ لکیزف یلاو ےنوہ لوصوم وک )زسورس رارٹسجر .F.D( رارٹسجر ےک ینپمک رپ ماتتخا ےک رابوراک وک 2022

 ۔اگ ےئاج ایک روغ رپ تقو ےیل ےک ےنید ٹوو روا تکرش ںیم گنٹیم روا ےنرک نیعت اک رادقح هروکذم رپ زیڈ یئآ زنشکیزنارٹ
 ھتاس ٹروپساپ ای )CNIC( ڈراک یتخانش یموق ڈزئارٹویپمک لصا انپا تقو ےک تکرش ںیم گنٹیم ناربمم ےلاو ےنرک تکرش ںیم گنٹیم .2
 ۔ںیئلا
 ۔ےہ رادقح اک ےنید ٹوو روا تکرش ںیم گنٹیم لرنج نکر کیا اک ینپمک .3
 ۔ےہ اتکس رک ررقم رپ روط ےک یسکارپ وک نکر روا یسک فرص ےیل ےک ےنید ٹوو روا ےنرک تکرش رپ ہگج یک
 ۔ےہ یرورض انوہ لوصوم وک یسکارپ ےیل ےک ےنوہ رثؤم .نکر ںیم سلاجا
 ۔ےئگ ےیک طختسد روا یئگ یئاگل رہم کت رید هدایز ےس ےٹنھگ 48 رپ سفآ ڈرٹسجر ےک ینپمک
 اتکس رک ںیہن ررقت اک هدایز ےس کیا نکر کیا ۔ےلہپ ےس تقو ےک داقعنا ےک سلاجا
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 ه  یک ٹروپساپ ای )CNIC( ڈراک یتخانش یموق ڈزئارٹویپمک ےک ںونود ناکلام لشفینیب روا زرڈلوہ رئیش ھتاس ےک مراف یسکارپ .یسکارپ
 ۔ںیئہاچ ینوہ کلسنم ںایپاک
 ۔ےہ ترورض یک ےنرک یوریپ یک لیذ ہجردنم وک زرڈلوہ ٹنؤاکا بس/یس یڈ یس .4
 -:تایادہ

a( ۔ےیل ےک تکرش ںیم گنٹیم 
i( ای /روا رڈلوہ ٹنؤاکا یلیذ ای رڈلوہ ٹنؤاکا ،ںیم ےلماعم ےک دارفا 
 ۔ںیہ ںیم نشیرٹسجر یک نا روا ٹنؤاکا پورگ زیٹرویکیس یک سج ،صخش هو
 ای )CNIC( ڈراک یتخانش یموق ڈزئارٹویپمک لصا(۔اگ ےرک قیدصت یک تخانش ،ںیہ یئگ یک ڈول پا قباطم ےک طباوض تلایصفت
 )۔رک اھکد ٹروپساپ لصا
ii( ھتاس ےک طختسد ےک صخش دزمان ینراٹا فآ رواپ/دادرارق یک زرٹکیرئاڈ فآ ڈروب تقو ےک گنٹیم ،ںیم تروص یک ےرادا ٹیروپراک 
 ۔اگ ےئاج ایک شیپ

b( ےیل ےک یررقت یک ںویسکارپ: 
i( یک نا روا ںیہ ںیم ٹنؤاکا پورگ زیٹرویکیس یک نج ،صخش هو ای/روا رڈلوہ ٹنؤاکا یلیذ ای رڈلوہ ٹنؤاکا ،ںیم ےلماعم ےک دارفا 
 ۔ےگ ںیئارک عمج مراف یسکارپ قباطم ےک ترورض لااب ہجردنم ،ںیہ یئگ یک ڈول پا قباطم ےک طباوض تلایصفت یک نشیرٹسجر
ii( ںیہ مان ےک نج دارفا ود یہاوگ یک مراف یسکارپ، 
 ۔وہ جرد رپ مراف ربمن ٹروپساپ ای )CNIC( ڈراک یتخانش یموق ڈزئارٹویپمک روا ےتپ

iii( ڈراک یتخانش یموق ڈزئارٹویپمک )CNIC( ںایپاک  یک ٹروپس ای  Beneficiary   ےئاج ایک شیپ ھتاس ےک مراف یسکارپ وک یسکارپ روا 
 ۔اگ

iv( ڈراک یتخانش یموق ڈزئارٹویپمک لصا انپا تقو ےک گنٹیم یسکارپ )CNIC( ۔اگ ےرک شیپ ٹروپساپ لصا ای 
v( ےک مراف یسکارپ وک ینپمک ھتاس ےک طختسد ہنومن ینراٹا فآ رواپ/دادرارق یک زرٹکیرئاڈ فآ ڈروب ،ںیم تروص یک ےرادا ٹیروپراک 
 ۔اگ ےئاج ایارک عمج ھتاس
 یروف یک یلیدبت یھب یسک ںیم تلایصفت یک ےطبار روا سیرڈیا لیم یا ،سیرڈیا گنلیم ےنپا هو ہک ےہ یتاج یک تساوخرد ےس نیکارا .5
 سیرڈیا ڈرٹسجر ےنپا هو ہک ےہ اتاج اید هروشم وک ناربمم ےلاو ےنھکر زرئیش لکیزف ۔ںیرک علطم وک سفآ رارٹسجر رئیش ینپمک رپ روط
 یئارک ںیہن عمج یپاک وٹوف یک زڈراک یتخانش ڈزئارٹویپمک ےنپا کت یھبا ےن زرڈلوہ رئیش نج روا ںید علاطا یک یلیدبت یک مسق یسک ںیم
 ۔ںید جیھب دلج زا دلج ےسا هو ہک ےہ یتاج یک تساوخرد ےس نا ےہ

 طختسد ےنپا هو ہک ےہ یتاج یک تساوخرد ےس نا ،ںیہ ےتہاچ انرک لوصو سٹون اک گنٹیم لرنج ےعیرذ ےک لیم یا وجزرڈلوہ رئیش .6
 ۔)ںیرک کلسنم یپاک  )CNIC ، ۔ںیرک ہطبار ،سیرڈیا لیم یا ،ربمن A/C یس یڈ یس/ویلوف ،مان ینعی ،تلایصفت ینپا ،ےعیرذ ےک طخ هدش
 سفآ ڈرٹسجر ےک سا ساپ ےک ینپمک ،ےہ اتہاچ انڑل باختنا اک زرٹکیرئاڈ وج )رٹکیرئاڈ لااو ےنوہ رئاٹیر کیا لومشب( صخش یھب یئوک .7
 ۔ےہ اتھکر هدارا اک ےنرک شیپ وک دوخ هو ہک اگ ےرک لئاف ےلہپ ند 14 ےس گنٹیم هروکذم ںیم هاوخنوتخپ ربیخ ،روپ یرہ ٹکرٹسڈ ،رھڈلاب
 :دوخ ےیل ےک باختنا ےک زرٹکیرئاڈ تحت ےک )3(159 نشکیس ےک 2017 ٹکیا زینپمک
)i( ۔ےہ اکچ وہ لمکم یہ ھتاس ےک سا ،سٹون اک ےدارا ےک سا ےک ےنوہ ےڑھک ںیم نشکیلا 
 نشکیس ےک 2017 ،ٹکیا زینپمک( ےئوہ ےتید یدنماضر یک ےنرک ماک رپ روط ےک رٹکیرئاڈ ےک ینپمک ےک رک طختسد رپ 28 مراف روا

 ٹکیا زینپمک ۔ےہ ایگ ایک نایب ںیم تاعفد ہک اسیج ےہ ںیہن لہاان ےیل ےک ےننب رٹکیرئاڈ هو ہک ےہ اترک قیدصت روا ،)تحت ےک )1(167
 نشیا یسوسیا فآ زلکیٹرآ ےک ینپمک هو ہک ہی روا ؛تحت ےک طباوض و دعاوق ،نیناوق قلاطا لباق یسک ای تحت ےک 153 نشکیس ےک 2017

 ۔ےہ اترک قیدصت یک ےنھکر صصح ےک تیلباق قباطم ےک
)ii( ۔ےئاج اید لاڈ رپ ٹئاس بیو یک ینپمک ےلہپ ند تاس ےس خیرات یک نشکیلا وک ےتپ ےک رتفد ھتاس ےک لئافورپ یلیصفت 
)ii( زینپمک ڈٹسل )ماک رپ روط ےک رٹکیرئاڈ ےک ینپمک جرد ںیم 2017 ،ٹکیا زینپمک روا 2017 ،زنشیلوگیر )سننروگ ٹیروپراک فآ ڈوک 
 ۔نلاعا ےس ےلاوح ےک ےنوہ قباطم ےک رایعم ےک تیلہا ےیل ےک ےنرک
)iii( تسرد CNIC روا NTN ۔توبث اک تیثیح یک هدنہد سکیٹ لاعف ھتاس ےک یپاک هدش قیدصت یک 
)iv( زینپمک ڈٹسل )دازآ تحت ےک 166 نشکیس ےک 2017 ٹکیا زینپمک روا )2(6 قش یک 2017 نشیلوگیر )سننروگ ٹیروپراک فآ ڈوک 
 ۔نلاعا اک زرٹکیرئاڈ
)v( ہطباض یلیذ ےک 4 ہطباض ےک ںوینپمک هو ہک انرک هدعو رپ رپیپ پماٹسا یتلادع ریغ )دازآ( ےہ اترک اروپ وک ںوضاقت ےک )1 
 ۔2018 ،زنشیلوگیر )باختنا روا ہقیرط اک زرٹکیرئاڈ
 نشکیس ےک 2017 ٹکیا زینپمک روا ےیل ےک دصقم ےک باختنا ےک زرٹکیرئاڈ ،قباطم ےک 2018 زنشیلوگیر )ٹلیب لٹسوپ( زینپمک .8

 ۔یگوہ تزاجا یک ےنرک لامعتسا قح اک ٹوو ےنپا وک نیکارا ،ےیل ےک ےڈنجیا ےرسود یسک طورشم ےس ںوضاقت ےک 144 روا 143
 ےک ڈوم کنارٹکیلا یھب یسک ای ےعیرذ ےک کاڈ ،قباطم ےک راک ہقیرط روا ںوضاقت دوجوم ںیم طباوض هروکذم ہک وج ،ٹلیب لٹسوپ
 ۔ےہ اہر رک گنٹوو ےعیرذ
 ۔ںیرک مہارف یروف ینابرہم ےئارب ،ںیہ ےتہاچ انیل ہصح ےعیرذ ےک گنٹوو یا وج زرڈلوہ رئیش .9
 لیم یا ،ربمن ٹنؤاکا یس یڈ یس/ویلوف ،مان ینعی ،ےعیرذ ےک طخ هدش طختسد ےک نا
 .A، I.I-رواٹ ڈیرٹ ہمئاص ،لزنم ںیو17 ،1705 ،ڈٹیمل )ٹیویئارپ( زسورس رارٹسجر F.D( ربمن ہطبار ےس رارٹسجر رئیش ےک ینپمک ،ہتپ

 ۔یچارک ،ڈور رگیردنچ
 ںیم گنٹیم ےعیرذ ےک کنل ویڈیو وک ینپمک رگا ۔ںیہ ےتکس رک تکرش ںیم گنٹیم ےعیرذ ےک تلوہس یک کنل ویڈیو زرڈلوہ رئیش .10

 فرط یک ناگتفای صصح ےلاو ےنھکر گنڈلوہ رئیش هدایز ےس سا ای %10 ےلاو ےنہر ںیم رہش ےرسود یسک ےیل ےک ےنرک تکرش
 یک کنل ںیم رہش سا ۔یگ ےرک تسبودنب اک ویڈیو ینپمک وت ،ےہ اتوہ لوصوم )ےلہپ ند 7 مک زا مک ےس خیرات یک گنٹیم( ہبلاطم ےس
 بیو یک ینپمک هو ہک ےہ یتاج یک تساوخرد ےس نا ،ںیہ ےتہاچ انیل ہصح ےعیرذ ےک تلوہس یک کنل ویڈیو وج ،زرڈلوہ رئیش ۔تلوہس
 ای ربمم ہک ےہر حضاو ۔ںیجیھب یپاک هدش طختسد رپ سیرڈیا ڈرٹسجر ےک ینپمک روا ںیرک رُپ وک مراف تلوہس کنل ویڈیو بایتسد رپ ٹئاس
 ۔اتکس رک ںیہن تکرش ںیم سلاجا ےعیرذ ےک تلوہس یک کنل ویڈیو صخش یھب یئوک هولاع ےک رڈلوہ یسکارپ

 مراف لکیزف وک صصح هدرک یراج ےنپا هو ہک ےہ اترک ہبلاطم ہی ےس ںوینپمک مامت ہک وج 72 نشکیس اک )ٹکیا( 2017 ،ٹکیا زینپمک .11
 ٹکیا ۔ںوہ ہن هدایز ےس لاس راچ ےس خیرات یک صصح ےلاو ےناج ےیک یراج ںیم مراف یرٹنا-کب وج ںیرک لیدبت ھتاس ےک صصح ںیم
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 ےنوہ دیفتسم ےس تلوہس یک ےنھکر صصح ںیم مراف-یرٹنا-کب روا ےنانب ینیقی وک لیمعت لمکم یک تاعفد یک 72 ہعفد هروکذم ذافن اک
 باتک وک صصح ےنپا هو ہک ےہ یتاج یک تساوخرد ےس نا ںیہ ےتھکر صصح ںیم لکش لکیزف یھب یھبا وج زرڈلوہ رئیش هو ،ےیل ےک
  ۔ںیرک لیدبت ںیم
 

 نایب تحت ےک 166 نشکیس ےک 2017 ٹکیا زینپمک
 

 سلاجا ماع ےئگ ےئلاب ےیل ےک دصقم ےک باختنا ےک زرٹکیرئاڈ نایب اک قئاقح یدام ہک ےہ اضاقت اک 166 ہعفد یک 2017 ٹکیا زینپمک
 ےرک یہدناشن یک زاوج ےک باختنا ےک یررقت ےیل ےک یررقت رپ روط ےک رٹکیرئاڈ راتخم دوخ وج ےئاج ایک کلسنم ھتاس ےک سٹون ےک
 ۔اگ
 ۔ےہ یرورض انوہ اک زرٹکیرئاڈ دازآ  ود وک ڈٹیمل زلم لئاٹسکیٹ ربیخ ،ےطان ےک ےنوہ ینپمک ڈٹسل کیا
 ےڑھک ںیم نشکیلا لباقمدم ۔2017 ۔زرٹکیرئاڈ دازآ رپ ڈروب ےنپا قباطم ےک 2017 ،زنشیلوگیر )سننروگ ٹیروپراک فآ ڈوک( زینپمک ڈٹسل
 ےیل ےک باختنا ےک یررقت ےیل ےک یررقت رپ روط ےک رٹکیرئاڈ راتخم دوخ ینپمک ،دعب ےک ےنرک رئاد هدارا /سٹون انپا ےیل ےک ےنوہ
 :یگ ےرک قلاطا اک تارایعم لیذ جرد
 تیلومش یک مان ےک زرٹکیرئاڈ دازآ ںیم کنیب اٹیڈ ماظتنا ریز ےک ناتسکاپ
 ۔ےہ زاجم ےس فرط یک   SECP   روا PICG سننروگ ٹیروپراک فآ ٹویٹ یٹسنا
 ہبرجت اک باختنا روا ملع ،تراہم ،عونت ،تیلباق ہقلعتم
 ۔اگ ےئاج ایل هزئاج اک ںولاو ےنرک ہلباقم
 ۔یگ ےل ماک ےس یدعتسم ےلہپ ےس ےنرک بختنم وک صخش یسک ےس کنیب اٹیڈ ینپمک
 ۔ےہ ایگ ایاتب ںیم نشکیس ہک اسیج ےہ اترتا اروپ رپ رایعم ےک یدازآ لباقمدم ہک
 ۔)2(166 اک 2017 ،ٹکیا زینپمک
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW 
 

(Start with the Name of Allah the Magnificent the Merciful) 
 
Respected Shareholders, 
 
I am pleased to welcome you to the 61st Annual General Meeting of Khyber Textile Mills 
Limited (the Company) and present the Annual Audited Report for the year ended June 30, 
2022. The significant aspects for evaluation of Company's performance, its results and 
financial/ material highlights underlining the fiscal year have been thoroughly elaborated in the 
Director's report and key operating and financial data. 
 
During the period under review there was significant revenue generation from the agricultural 
livestock business and supplementary income from rental of vacant buildings. However, the 
Company’s textile production remained closed due to restriction on credit facilities by the 
banks. 
 
The overall performance of the Board of Directors remained satisfactory. The Board, 
comprised of experienced and seasoned individuals with diversified experience and has played 
an important role in making effective decisions at all levels. The Committees of the Board 
operated efficiently and assisted the Board in all key matters. 
 
On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank all the stakeholders for their trust and support. I 
am confident that the Company has all the makings necessary to achieve the expectations of its 
stakeholders. Further, I would like to thank the Management and staff for their hard work and 
devotion for the betterment of the Company. 
 
 
 
          
 
Baldher, Haripur      Mr. Aurangzeb Khan 
Dated: 26 September 2022      Chairman 
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 ویویر نیم رئیچ

 )ےہ نابرہم اڑب وج ےس مان ےک الله(

 ،زرڈلوہ رئیشززعم

 وہ یشوخ ےئوہ ےترک مدقمریخ اک پآ ںیم ماع سلاجا ہنلااس ںیو61 ےک )ینپمک( ڈٹیمل زلم لئاٹسکیٹ ربیخ ےھجم

 روا ٹروپر یک رٹکیرئاڈ ۔ںوہ اہر رک شیپ ٹروپر ہنلااس یک لاس ےلاو ےنوہ متخ وک 2022 نوج 30 روا ےہ یہر

 یئگ یک نایب ےس حرط یھچا ںایکلھج یلاو ےنلاڈ ینشور رپ لاس یلام ںیم رامش و دادعا یتایلام روا گنٹیرپآ یدیلک

 ۔ںیہ

 ےس ےئارک ےک ںوترامع یلاخ روا یندمآ ںایامن ےس رابوراک ےک کاٹس ویئلا یعرز نارود ےک تدم هزئاج ریز

 یک لئاٹسکیٹ یک ینپمک ےس ہجو یک یدنباپ رپ تایلوہس یک ضرق ےس فرط یک ںوکنیب ،مہات ۔یئوہ یندمآ یفاضا

 ۔یہر دنب راوادیپ

 

 لمتشم رپ دارفا  راک ہبرجت ےلاو ےنھکر ہبرجت عونتم ۔یہر شخب یلست یگدرکراک یعومجم یک زرٹکیرئاڈ فآ ڈروب

 ۔ےہ ایک ادا رادرک مہا کیا ےن ڈروب

 ۔یک ددم یک ڈروب ںیم تلاماعم مہا مامت روا ایک ماک ےس ےقیرط رثؤم ےن ںویٹیمک یک ڈروب 

 

 ےھجم ۔اگ ںوہاچ انرک ادا ہیرکش اک نا ےیل ےک نواعت روا دامتعا ےک زرڈلوہ کیٹسا مامت ںیم ،ےس بناج یک ڈروب

 دوجوم ءازجا مامت یرورض ےیل ےک ےنرک اروپ وک تاعقوت یک زرڈلوہ کیٹسا   ےنپا ساپ ےک ینپمک ہک ےہ نیقی

 ۔اگ ںوہاچ انرک ادا ہیرکش اک نگل روا تنحم یک ےلمع روا ہیماظتنا ےیل ےک یرتہب یک ینپمک ںیم ،دیزم ۔ںیہ
 
 
          
 
 
 

 )نیم رئیچ( ناخ بیزگنروا بانج
                                                           روپ یرہ ،ریھڈلاب

  2022 ربمتس 26
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DIRECTORS REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS 
 
Dear Members, 
 
The Board of Directors welcomes you to the 61st Annual General Meeting of your Company 
and are pleased to present the Annual Accounts duly audited together with Auditors’ Report 
along with other relevant statements as required by the Code of Corporate Governance of 
Pakistan Stock Exchange for the year ended 30th June, 2022. 
 
Financial Results: 
During the period under review there was significant revenue generation from the agricultural 
livestock business and supplementary income from rental of vacant buildings. However, the 
Company’s textile production remained closed due to restriction on credit facilities by the 
banks.  

 
Dividend 
Considering the accumulated losses, directors have not recommended any dividend payout or 
bonus shares for the year.  
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Law Suits against the Company:  
• NBP vs. KTML: On 17-03-2014 the Hon’ble Banking Judge Peshawar High Court has 

dismissed NBP’s suit in favour of KTML. However, NBP has filed an appeal against the 
judgment. As of September 2022, arguments are pending before the Honorable Peshawar 
High Court, due to the delaying tactics of NBP. KTML’s Management and Legal team will 
continue to defend KTML’s interests vigorously and are hopeful that NBP’s appeal will be 
dismissed. For further information refer to Note #16. 
• ICP, NBP & Others vs. KTML: A Suit for recovery was filed by ICP, NBP & Others in the 

Sindh High Court (SHC). The Honorable Sindh High Court has allowed KTML’s Leave to 
Defend Application. KTML’s Management and Legal team are optimistic as a judgment on 
these issues in our favour has already been decided by the Honorable Peshawar High Court, 
which will hopefully lead to the dismissal of the ICP, NBP suit in the SHC. As of September 
2022, the suit is at the final stages of arguments. For further information refer to Note #16. 

 
Litigation Implications: 
The Banks maintained their credit squeeze by delaying the finalization of appeal and suit 
pending before the Peshawar High Court and Sindh High Court respectively, thereby ensuring 
that KTML’s defaulter status is maintained on the SBP CIB Report in order to force the 
Company to come to their unjust terms. The Management is of the strong view that the 
Company does not owe any outstanding amounts to the Banks. Unfortunately, the Banks 
coercive strategy has led to the continued closure of textile production, the re-initiation of 
which requires a hefty amount of funds to complete refurbishment of machinery and along 
with access to working capital. Nonetheless, it is the BOD and Management’s intention to 
rehabilitate the Textile Unit once the Banking litigation has reached finality and credit facilities 
have been restored. Refer to Note #16. 
 
Business Activities: 
As per the BOD and Members approval in prior years, the Company has continued to invest in 
its revised principal activity of agriculture on its abundant land (separate from the Textile Unit) 
in FY2022. This investment over the years in the agricultural business has included the 
construction of ample housing capacity for cattle, the purchase of livestock, the planting and 
growing of olive saplings/trees, improving the Mills water piping system, water storage, tube 
well and irrigation systems throughout the Company’s premises. In addition, Management has 
utilized the Company’s empty land by transforming and developing the area for cultivation. 
The cultivation of crops grown, has been used in support of the Company’s livestock farm, 
which has enabled a reduction in purchasing of fodder from the market, reducing input costs, 
thus increasing the farms profitability.  
 

The BOD takes this opportunity to inform the shareholders that in FY 2022 despite a ban on 
access to credit and rampant inflation in the Country, the Company has managed to improve 
the agricultural farm and operations. Additionally, the sales of cattle registered a significant 
increase as reflected in the financial accounts annexed herewith.  
Moreover, Management has continued to generate further revenue for the Company through 
the renting of vacant buildings and warehouses and has used this financial stream to reinvest in 
the Company’s current operations. Hence, through the successful sales of livestock and rental 
income, Management has proved that the modified business plan for the Company is viable, as 
the revenue of the Company has substantially increased, and liabilities have decreased. Further, 
the Company is an active taxpayer, contributing advance tax to the national exchequer. Lastly,  
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the exercise of revaluation of property, plant and equipment repeatedly carried out by 
Management, has emphasized the worth of the Company.  
Future Plans 
Moving forward, Management will continue to repair vacant buildings on the Company’s 
property for use in warehousing and rental activity, thereby utilizing the excess areas for the 
generation of additional revenue for the Company. Moreover, Management intends, to improve 
the cultivatable land and invest further in the Company’s agricultural livestock farm, thereby 
increasing the sale of cattle for FY-2023. The income derived from these business activities 
will also be used for the maintenance of the Company’s assets, salaries of employees, payment 
of expenses, meeting the Company’s legal overheads, fulfilling the requirements under the 
Companies Act 2017, and to invest in new business activities if found feasible by the BOD.  
 
Management expects that due to our Company’s location near the E-35 Motorway, access to 
the CPEC will hopefully open up new opportunities for further business activity.  
  
Auditor’s Reservations: 
• Concerning auditor qualification for creditors that remain un-verified, these amounts were 

pending since the closure of textile production and the creditors have not come forward to 
demand their dues nor are in contact with the Company. Moreover, these amounts have 
become time barred; therefore, Management has written back the balances in the previous 
financial year.  
• Regarding the Company’s non-compliance on the 2nd Independent Director requirement, 

Management will be fulfilling this requirement during the upcoming AGM.  
 
Statement of Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework: 
The Board of Directors further state that: 
1. The financial statements under review have been prepared in accordance with the 

provision of the Companies Act 2017 and the International Accounting Standards as 
applicable in Pakistan.  

2. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial 
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. 

3. Proper books of account have been maintained by the Company accordingly the financial 
statements present fairly the Company’s state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash 
flows and changes in equity. 

4. The system of internal control of the Company is satisfactory in design and has been 
effectively implemented and continues to be monitored for improvement. 

5. As a result of overall effort being made to control cost and maximize revenue, there are no 
significant doubts about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and 
therefore no adjustment is required in the recorded assets and liabilities. 

6. There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as 
detailed in the listing regulations and as applicable to the company for the year ended 30th 
June, 2022. 

7. The key operating and financial results for the last six years, in a summarized form, are 
annexed. 

8. The Audit Committee assists the Board in discharging its duties and responsibilities 
ensuring good compliance with Code of Corporate Governance including review of 
reports, Company’s financial results and internal control procedures for Management 
decisions and evolving strategy for safeguarding Company’s assets and its business 
potentials. 
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9. The Audit Committee meets before Board Meetings and its report is presented in the 
Board Meeting. 

Board of Directors Composition: 
Currently the Board comprises of seven directors including our Chief Executive Officer 
(CEO), Mr. Adam Jadoon. All of them possess diversified experience and suitable skill set 
with competencies for safeguarding the interests of stakeholders and the Company.  During the 
period under report 4 (four) meetings of the Board of Directors were held. 
     
     Attendance of each Director is as under: 

Composition of Board No. of Meetings Attended 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
Mr. Adam Jadoon 4 
 
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS  

Mr. Aurangzeb Khan  3 
Mr. Amanullah Khan Jadoon 4 
Mr. Muhammad Bahauddin 4 
Mr. Omar Farid Jadoon 4 
Mrs. Aamna Jadoon 3 
 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS  

Mr. Hassan Ovais 4 
 
Directors' Training: 
Four of our Directors, Mr. Adam Jadoon (CEO), Mrs. Aamna Jadoon, Mr. Muhammad 
Bahauddin, and Mr. Hassan Ovais have already obtained the prescribed certifications under the 
Directors Training Program. The remaining three Directors are exempt from Directors Training 
Program due to their experience in the Board. 
 
Chairman's Review: 
The directors hereby endorse the Chairman’s review on the performance of the Company. 
 
Remuneration of Directors and Chief Executive: 
No remuneration and perquisites were paid to the directors and chief executive. 
 
Auditors: 
The auditors M/s Clarkson Hyde Saud Ansari, Chartered Accountants have a satisfactory rating 
under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan (ICAP) and compliance with the International Federation of Accountants' (IFAC) 
Guidelines on Code of Ethics, as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan. They also possess satisfactory rating from Audit Oversight Board (AOB). The 
present auditors, M/s Clarkson Hyde Saud Ansari Chartered Accountants, retire and being 
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. As required by the CCG the Audit Committee 
has suggested the name of M/s Clarkson Saud Ansari, Chartered Accountant to act as auditors 
of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23.   
 
Pattern Of Shareholding: 
The pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2022 and its disclosure as required by the Act and 
Code of Corporate Governance is annexed with this report. There was no other reported 
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transaction of sale or purchase of shares of the Company by Directors, Chief Executive 
Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Internal Auditor, Chief Operating 
Officer and their spouses or minor children during the year under review, except as given in 
Pattern of Shareholding. 
 
Compliance with Code of Corporate Governance: 
The requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance set out by the Pakistan Stock 
Exchange in their Listing Regulations relevant for the year ended June 30, 2022 have been 
adopted by the Company and have been duly complied with except for Regulation 6 regarding 
two Independent Directors. Said Regulation will be complied in the upcoming election of 
directors as the term of the current board will expire in October, 2022. A statement of 
compliance is annexed to the report. 
 
Material Changes: 
There have been no material changes since year end June 30, 2021 till date of the report except 
as disclosed in this annual report and the company has not entered into any commitment which 
would affect its financial position at the date except for those mentioned in audited financial 
statements of the company for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
 
Statutory Compliance: 
During the year the company has complied with all applicable provisions, filed all returns / 
forms and furnished all the relevant particulars as required under the Companies Act 2017 and 
allied rules, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) Regulations and the 
listing requirements. 
 
Related Party Transactions: 
All transactions with related parties including pricing policies applied upon recommendation of 
Audit Committee and as disclosed in notes to the annual audited financial statements thereon 
are reviewed and approved by the Board. 
 
Web Presence: 
Updated information regarding the Company can be accessed at Company's website 
www.khybertextile.com. The website contains the latest financial results of the company along 
with Company's profile. 
 
Corporate Social Responsibility: 
The Management of the Company is aware of its corporate and social responsibility and will 
encourage social projects in the future.  
 
Acknowledgement: 
The Board would like to thank and appreciate our shareholders for their confidence and trust. 
The Board also extends its appreciation and gratefulness towards dedication and commitment 
presented by the Company’s employees. 
 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
  

        
Baldher, Haripur    Aurangzeb Khan                 Adam Jadoon 
Dated:-  26th  September, 2022   Director  
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ٹروپر زرٹکیرئاڈ  
 

 ،ناربمم ززعم
 جنیچسکیا کاٹسا ناتسکاپ روا ےہ اترک مدقمریخ اک پآ ںیم گنٹیم لرنج ہنلااس ںیو61 ےک ینپمک یک پآ زرٹکیرئاڈ فآ ڈروب
 ٹڈآ ھتاس ےک ٹروپر یک زرٹیڈآ ھتاس ےک تانایب ہقلعتم رگید ہبولطم ےیل ےک لاس قباطم ےک سننروگ ٹیروپراک فآ ڈوک ےک
 ۔اوہ متخ وک 2022 نوج 30 ۔ےہ اترک سوسحم یشوخ ےئوہ ےترک شیپ وک سٹنؤاکا ہنلااس ےئگ ےیک
 :جئاتن یتایلام
 یفاضا ےس ےئارک ےک ںوترامع یلاخ روا یئوہ یندمآ ںایامن ےس رابوراک ےک کاٹس ویئلا یعرز نارود ےک تدم هزئاج ریز
 ۔یہر دنب راوادیپ یک لئاٹسکیٹ یک ینپمک ےس ہجو یک یدنباپ رپ تایلوہس یک ضرق ےس فرط یک ںوکنیب ،مہات ۔یئوہ یندمآ
 

 
 ڈنڈیویڈ
 یک زرئیش سنوب ای یگیئادا یک ڈنڈیویڈ یھب یسک ےیل ےک لاس ےن زرٹکیرئاڈ ،ےئوہ ےتھکر رظندم وک تاناصقن هدش عمج
 ۔ےہ یک ںیہن شرافس
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 :ہمدقم ینوناق فلاخ ےک ینپمک
• NBP vs KTML  17-03-2014: ےن ٹروک یئاہ رواشپ جج گنکنیب ززعم وک KTML ںیم قح ےک NBP ہمدقم اک 
 ہجو یک ںوبرح یریخات ےک NBP ،کت 2022 ربمتس ۔ےہ یک رئاد لیپا فلاخ ےک ےلصیف ےن NBP ،مہات ۔ےہ اید رک جراخ
 اک تادافم ےک KTML میٹ ینوناق روا ہیماظتنا یک KTML ۔ںیہ ءاوتلا ریز لئلاد ےنماس ےک ٹروک یئاہ رواشپ ززعم ،ےس
 ےیل ےک تامولعم دیزم ۔یگ ےئاج ید رک جراخ لیپا یک NBP ہک ںیہ دیما رپ روا یگ ےہر یترک عافد ےس ےقیرط روپرھب
 ۔ںیرک ہظحلام 16 ربمن ٹون
• ICP، NBP رگید روا vs  KTML: ٹروک یئاہ ھدنس )SHC( ںیم ICP، NBP اک یروکیر ےس فرط یک رگید روا 
 ہیماظتنا یک KTML ۔ید ےد تزاجا یک عافد ےک تساوخرد یک KTML ےن ٹروک یئاہ ھدنس ززعم ۔اھت ایگ ایک رئاد ہمدقم
 دیما وج ےہ اکچ ےد یہ ےلہپ ٹروک یئاہ رواشپ ززعم ہلصیف ںیم قح ےرامہ رپ لئاسم نا ہکنویک ںیہ دیما رپ میٹ ینوناق روا
 ۔ےہ ںیم لحارم یرخآ ےک لئلاد ہمدقم ،کت 2022 ربمتس ۔اگ ےد رک جراخ وک ےمدقم ےک ICP، NBP ںیم SHC ہک ےہ
 ۔ںیرک ہظحلام 16 ربمن ٹون ےیل ےک تامولعم دیزم
 :تارمضم ےک یئوج هراچ ینوناق
 ںیم ےنید لکش یمتح وک ٹوس روا لیپا اوتلا ریز ےنماس ےک ٹروک یئاہ ھدنس روا ٹروک یئاہ رواشپ بیترتلاب ےن ںوکنیب
 SBP وک سٹیٹسا رٹلافیڈ یک KTML ہک ایانب ینیقی وک تاب سا حرط سا ،اھکر رارقرب وک زوکس ٹڈیرک ےنپا ےکرک ریخات

CIB ہک ےہ لایخ ہتخپ اک ہیماظتنا ۔ےکس اج ایک روبجم رپ یفاصناان یک نا وک ینپمک ہکات ےہ ایگ اھکر رارقرب رپ ٹروپر 
 یک لئاٹسکیٹ یلمع تمکح یک یتسدربز یک ںوکنیب ،ےس یتمسقدب ۔ےہ ںیہن ادلاا بجاو مقر ایاقب یئوک یک ںوکنیب رپ ینپمک
 یئاسر کت لٹیپیک گنکرو روا دیدجت یک یرنیشم ےیل ےک زاغآ هرابود ےک سج ،ےہ ینب ثعاب اک ےنرک دنب لسلسم وک راوادیپ
 وہ لمکم یئوج هراچ ینوناق گنکنیب بج ہک ےہ هدارا اک ہیماظتنا روا BOD ہی ،لاح رہب ۔ےہ ترورض یک مقر یراھب ےیل ےک
 ہظحلام 16 ربمن ٹون ےیل ےک تامولعم دیزم۔ےئاج ایک لاحب وک ٹنوی لئاٹسکیٹ وت ںیئاج وہ لاحب تایلوہس یک ضرق روا ےئاج
 ۔ںیرک ںیرک
 :ںایمرگرس یرابوراک
 لئاٹسکیٹ( نیمز رفاو ینپا ںیم FY2022 ےن ینپمک ،قباطم ےک یروظنم یک نیکارا روا BOD ںیم ںولاس ہتشزگ
 یعرز ۔ےہ یھکر یراج یراک ہیامرس ںیم یمرگرس یداینب هدش یناثرظن ینپا یک گنمراف یعرز رپ )گلا ےس ٹنوی
 یک شئاجنگ یک شئاہر یفاک ےیل ےک ںویشیوم ںیم یراک ہیامرس سا یلاو ےنوہ ںیم ںوسرب ہتشزگ ںیم رابوراک
 گنپئاپ یک یناپ ےک زلم ،شئازفا یک نا روا یراکرجش یک ںوتخرد/ےدوپ ےک نوتیز ،یرادیرخ یک ںویشیوم ،ریمعت
 ےروپ ےک ینپمک ۔ےہ لماش انانب رتہب وک ماظن ےک یشاپبآ روا لیو بویٹ ،ےنرک هریخذ یناپ ،انانب رتہب وک ماظن ےک
 ایک لامعتسا رک ےد یقرت روا لیدبت ےیل ےک تشاک وک نیمز یلاخ یک ینپمک ےن ہیماظتنا ،ںآرب دیزم ۔ںیم ےطاحا
 ےن سج ،ےہ یئگ یک لامعتسا ںیم ددم یک مراف کاٹس ویئلا ےک ینپمک ،تشاک یک ںولصف یلاو ےناج یئاگا ۔ےہ
 عفانم ےک مراف حرط سا ،ےہ ایانب لباق ےک ےنرک مک وک تگلا ٹپ نا ،یمک ںیم یرادیرخ یک ےراچ ےس ٹیکرام
 ۔ےہ اوہ ہفاضا ںیم

BOD ںیم کلم روا یدنباپ رپ یئاسر کت ضرق ںیم 2022 لاس یلام ہک ےہ اترک علطم وک ناگتفای صصح رپ عقوم سا 
 ،ںآرب دیزم ۔ےہ یک لصاح یبایماک ںیم ےنانب رتہب وک زنشیرپآ روا مراف یعرز ےن ینپمک ،دوجواب ےک رز طارفا یئوہ یتھڑب
 ںوتاھک یلام کلسنم ھتاس ےک سا ہک اسیج اوہ ہفاضا ںایامن ںیم تخورف یک  کاٹس ویئلا روا ،یئآ یمک ںیم تگلا ٹپ نا یرامہ

 ۔ےہ اتوہ رہاظ ےس
 یراج انرک لصاح یندمآ دیزم ےیل ےک ینپمک ےعیرذ ےک ےئارک ےک ںومادوگ روا ںوترامع یلاخ ےن ٹنمجنیم ،ںآرب دیزم
 ویئلا ،اذہل ۔ےہ ایک لامعتسا ےیل ےک یراک ہیامرس هرابود ںیم زنشیرپآ هدوجوم ےک ینپمک وک ےلسلس یتایلام سا روا ےہ یھکر
 هدش لیدبت ےیل ےک ینپمک ہک ےہ اید رک تباث ےن ٹنمجنیم ےعیرذ ےک یندمآ یک ےئارک روا تخورف بایماک یک کاٹس
 دیزم ۔ےہ یئآ یمک ںیم تابجاو روا ،ےہ اوہ ہفاضا هاوخ رطاخ ںیم یندمآ یک ینپمک ہکنویک ،ےہ لمع لباق ہبوصنم یرابوراک
 فرط یک ہیماظتنا ،ںیم رخآ ۔ےہ یتلاڈ ہصح اک سکیٹ سناوڈیا ںیم ےنازخ یموق وج ،ےہ هدنہد سکیٹ لاعف کیا ینپمک ہک ہی

 ۔ےہ  ایک ہفاضا ںیم ردق یک ینپمک ےن قشم یک صیخشت هرابود یک تلاآ روا ٹنلاپ ،دادیئاج ےس
 ےبوصنم ےک لبقتسم
 ےک ےنرک لامعتسا ںیم ںویمرگرس یک ہیارک روا مادوگ وک ںوترامع یلاخ رپ دادیئاج یک ینپمک ٹنمجنیم ،ےئوہ ےتھڑب ےگآ
 ےرک لامعتسا وک ںوہگج یفاضا ےیل ےک ےنرک ادیپ یندمآ یفاضا ےیل ےک ینپمک حرط سا ،یگ ےھکر یراج انرک تمرم ےیل
 یراک ہیامرس دیزم ںیم مراف کاٹس ویئلا یعرز روا ےئاج ایانب رتہب وک نیمز تشاک لباق ہک ےہ هدارا اک ہیماظتنا ،ںآرب دیزم ۔یگ
 لصاح ےس ںویمرگرس یرابوراک نا ۔اگ وہ ہفاضا ںیم تخورف یک ںویشیوم ےیل ےک 2023 لاس یلام حرط سا ،ےئاج یک
 رووا ینوناق ےک ینپمک ،یگیئادا یک تاجارخا ،ںوہاوخنت یک نیمزلام ،لاھب ھکید یک ںوثاثا ےک ینپمک وک یندمآ یلاو ےنوہ
 یراک ہیامرس ںیم ںویمرگرس یرابوراک یئن روا ےنرک اروپ وک تایرورض تحت ےک 2017 ٹکیا زینپمک ،ےنرک اروپ وک زڈیہ
  ۔اگ ےئاج ایک لامعتسا یھب ےیل ےک ےنرک
 دیزم یئاسر کت CPEC ہک ےہ دیما ،ےس ہجو یک ماقم ےک ینپمک یرامہ بیرق ےک ےو رٹوم E-35 ہک ےہ عقوت وک ہیماظتنا
 ۔یگ ےرک مہارف عقاوم ےئن ےیل ےک ںویمرگرس یرابوراک
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 :تاظفحت ےک رٹیڈآ
 ریز ےس دعب ےک شدنب یک راوادیپ یک لئاٹسکیٹ موقر ہی ،قلعتم ےس تیلہا یک رٹیڈآ ےیل ےک ناگدنہد ضرق هدش قیدصت ریغ •
 ۔ںیہ ںیم ےطبار ھتاس ےک ینپمک یہ ہن روا ےئآ ںیہن ےگآ ےیل ےک ےنرک ہبلاطم اک تابجاو ےنپا ناگدنہد ضرق روا ںیھت ءاوتلا
 ۔ےہ اید  رک متخ وک سنلیب  ےک نا نارودےک لاس یلام ےلھچپ ےن ہیماظتنا  ےئل سا

nd2 هدنئآ ٹنمجنیم ،ںیم ےراب ےک لیمعت مدع یک ینپمک رپ ترورض یک رٹکیرئاڈ دازآ AGM وک ترورض سا نارود ےک 
 ۔یگ ےرک اروپ
 :نایب اک کرو میرف گنٹروپر یتایلام روا ٹیروپراک
 :ہک ےہ انہک دیزم اک زرٹکیرئاڈ فآ ڈروب

 قباطم ےک تارایعم گنٹنؤاکا یماوقلاا نیب ےلاو ےنوہ وگلا ںیم ناتسکاپ روا 2017 ٹکیا زینپمک تانایب یلام هزئاج ریز .1
 ۔ںیہ ےئگ ےیک رایت

 لوقعم ےنیمخت ےک گنٹنؤاکا روا ےہ ایگ ایک قلاطا لسلسم اک ںویسیلاپ گنٹنؤاکا بسانم ںیم یرایت یک ںوراوشوگ یتایلام .2
 ۔ںیہ ینبم رپ ےلصیف ہنادنمشناد روا

 ےک سا ،تلاح یک ینپمک تانایب یتایلام قباطم ےک سا ،ںیہ یئگ یھکر ںیباتک بسانم یک ٹنؤاکا ےس فرط یک ینپمک .3
 ۔ںیہ ےترک شیپ ےس حرط یھچا وک ںویلیدبت یلاو ےنوہ ںیم یٹیوکیا روا ؤاہب دقن ،ےجیتن ےک ںوماک
 یک سا ےیل ےک یرتہب روا ےہ ایگ ایک ذفان ےس ےقیرط رثؤم ےسا روا ےہ شخب یلست ماظن اک لورٹنک ینوردنا اک ینپمک .4
 ۔ےہ یراج ینارگن

 ،ںیم ےجیتن ےک ںوششوک یعومجم یلاو ےناج یک ےیل ےک ےنرک هدایز ےس هدایز وک یندمآ روا ےنرک لورٹنک وک تگلا .5
 یسک ںیم تابجاو روا ںوثاثا هدش ڈراکیر ےیل سا روا ےہ ںیہن کش یئوک ںیم ےراب ےک ےنرک رتہب وک تیحلاص  یک ینپمک
 ۔ےہ ںیہن ترورض یک ٹنمٹسجڈیا یک مسق

 ےہ ایگ ایاتب ےس لیصفت ںیم طباوض ےک یزاس تسرہف ہک اسیج ،ےہ  ایگ ایانپا وک ںوقیرط نیرتہب ےک سننروگ ٹیروپراک .6
 ۔ےہ وگلا رپ ینپمک ےیل ےک لاس ےلاو ےنوہ متخ وک 2022 ،نوج 30 ہک اسیج روا

 ۔ںیہ کلسنم ،ںیم لکش یک ہصلاخ ،جئاتن یتایلام روا گنٹیرپآ مہا ےک ںولاس ھچ ےلھچپ .7
 یک سننروگ ٹیروپراک فآ ڈوک ںیم سج ےہ یترک ددم یک ڈروب ںیم ےناھبن وک ںویراد ہمذ روا ضئارف ےنپا یٹیمک ٹڈآ .8
 ینوردنا ےیل ےک ںولصیف یماظتنا روا جئاتن یتایلام ےک ینپمک ،هزئاج اک سٹروپر ںیم سج ےہ اتاج ایانب ینیقی وک لیمعت یھچا
 لماش انرک رایت یلمع تمکح ےیل ےک تظافح یک تاناکما یرابوراک ےک سا روا ںوثاثا ےک ینپمک روا راک ہقیرط ےک لورٹنک
 ۔ےہ

 -ےہ یتاج یک شیپ ںیم گنٹیم ڈروب ٹروپر یک سا روا ےہ یترک گنٹیم ےلہپ ےس زگنٹیم ڈروب یٹیمک ٹڈآ .9
 :تخاس یک زرٹکیرئاڈ فآ ڈروب
 بس نا ۔ںیہ لماش نودج مدآ بانج )CEO( رسیفآ وٹکیزگیا فیچ ےرامہ ںیم سج ےہ لمتشم رپ زرٹکیرئاڈ تاس ڈروب لاحلا یف
 سا ۔ںیہ یترک تظافح یک تادافم یتاذ ےک ینپمک روا زرڈلوہ کیٹسا وج ںیہ ںیتیحلاص یداینب ںیم سج ےہ ہبرجت ساپ ےک
 ۔ےئوہ دقعنم سلاجا )راچ( 4 ےک زرٹکیرئاڈ فآ ڈروب نارود ےک لاس یلام
 :ےہ لیذ بسح یرضاح یک رٹکیرئاڈ رہ     
 لیکشت یک ربمن ڈروب ےک ںوسلاجا

 
 رٹکیرئاڈ وٹکیزگیا

 4                        نودج مدآ بانج
 زرٹکیرئاڈ وٹکیزگیا ریغ
       3              ناخ بیزگنروا بانج
 4           نودج ناخ الله ناما بانج
 4                نیدلاؤاہب دمحم بانج
  4              نودج دیرف رمع بانج
 3                      نودج ہنمآ زسم
 زرٹکیرئاڈ دازآ

  4                    سیوا نسح بانج
 
 :تیبرت یک زرٹکیرئاڈ
 یہ ےلہپ سیوا نسح بانج روا ،نیدلاؤاہب دمحم بانج ،نودج ہنمآ زسم ،)CEO( نودج مدآ بانج ،زرٹکیرئاڈ راچ ےرامہ
 یک ےبرجت ےنپا ںیم ڈروب زرٹکیرئاڈ رگید نیت ۔ںیہ ےکچ رک لصاح نشیکیفیٹرس هررقم تحت ےک مارگورپ گننیرٹ زرٹکیرئاڈ
 ۔ںیہ یٰنثتسم ےس مارگورپ گننیرٹ زرٹکیرئاڈ ےس ہجو
 :هزئاج اک نیمرئیچ
 ۔ںیہ ےترک قیثوت یک ےزئاج ےک نیمرئیچ رپ یگدرکراک یک ینپمک حرط سا زرٹکیرئاڈ
 :ےضواعم ےک وٹکیزگیا فیچ روا زرٹکیرئاڈ
 ۔ںیئگ ید ںیہن تاعارم روا ہضواعم یئوک وک وٹکیزگیا فیچ روا زرٹکیرئاڈ
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 :زرٹیڈآ
 نسکرلاک زرسیم زرٹیڈآ تحت ےک مارگورپ ویویر لورٹنک یٹلاوک ےک )ICAP( ناتسکاپ فآ سٹنٹنؤاکا ڈرٹراچ فآ ٹویٹ یٹسنا
 سٹنٹنؤاکا فآ نشیرڈیف لنشینرٹنا رپ سکھتیا فآ ڈوک روا ےہ شخب یلست یدنب ہجرد یک سٹنٹنؤاکا ڈرٹراچ ،یراصنا دوعس ڈیئاہ
)IFAC( ساپ ےک نا ۔ےہ ایانپا ےن ناتسکاپ فآ سٹنٹنؤاکا ڈرٹراچ فآ ٹویٹ یٹسنا ہک اسیج ۔ےہ لیمعت یک ںولوصا امنہر ےک 
 یراصنا دوعس ڈیئاہ نسکرلاک زرسیم ،زرٹیڈآ هدوجوم ۔ےہ یدنب ہجرد شخب یلست یھب ےس )AOB( ڈروب ٹیئاس رووا ٹڈآ

 یک یج یس یس ۔ںیہ ےترک شیپ ےیل ےک یررقت هرابود وک دوخ ،دعب ےک ےنوہ لہا روا ےنوہ رئاٹیر ،سٹنٹنؤاکا ڈرٹراچ
 زرسیم ےیل ےک ےنرک ماک رپ روط ےک رٹیڈآ ےک ینپمک ےیل ےک 23-2022 لاس یلام ےن یٹیمک ٹڈآ قباطم ےک ترورض
 ۔ےہ ایک زیوجت مان اک ٹنٹنؤاکا ڈرٹراچ ،یراصنا دوعس نسکرلاک
 :ہنومن اک یراد ہصح

 ےہ ترورض یک سننروگ ٹیروپراک فآ ڈوک روا ٹکیا ہک اسیج ءاشفا اک سا روا نرٹیپ اک گنڈلوہ رئیش کت 2022 نوج 30
 ۔ےہ کلسنم ھتاس ےک ٹروپر سا

 فیچ ،رٹیڈآ لنرٹنا فیچ ،رسیفآ لشنانف فیچ ،یرٹرکیس ینپمک ،رسیفآ وٹکیزگیا فیچ ،زرٹکیرئاڈ نارود ےک لاس هزئاج ریز
 ارسود یئوک اک یرادیرخ ای تخورف یک صصح ےک ینپمک ہعیرذ ےک ںوچب غلابان ای تایح کیرش ےک نا روا رسیفآ گنٹیرپآ
 \۔ےہ ایگ اید ںیم نرٹیپ ےک گنڈلوہ رئیش ہک ےک سا ےئاوس ،اوہ ںیہن نید نیل
 :لیمعت یک سننروگ ٹیروپراک فآ ڈوک
 طباوض ےک یزاس تسرہف ہقلعتم ےیل ےک لاس ےلاو ےنوہ متخ وک 2022 نوج 30 ےس بناج یک جنیچسکیا کاٹسا ناتسکاپ
 ےس ےلاوح ےک زرٹکیرئاڈ دازآ ود روا ےہ ایانپا ےن ینپمک وک ںوضاقت ےک سننروگ ٹیروپراک ہطباض هدرک عضو ںیم
 یگ ےئاج یک ںیم تاباختنا هدنئآ ےک زرٹکیرئاڈ لیمعت یک ےطباض سا ۔ےہ یئگ یک لیمعت لمکم یک نا هولاع ےک 6 نشیلوگیر
 ۔ےہ کلسنم نایب اک لیمعت ھتاس ےک ٹروپر ۔یگ ےئاج وہ متخ ںیم 2022 ربوتکا داعیم یک ڈروب هدوجوم ہکنویک
 :ںایلیدبت یدام
 ےک ٹروپر ہنلااس سا ےئاوس ںیہ یئوہ ںیہن ںایلیدبت یدام یئوک کت خیرات یک ٹروپر ےس 2021 نوج 30 ںیم رخآ ےک لاس
 یتوہ رثاتم نشیزوپ یلام یک سا رپ خیرات سا ےس سج ےہ ایک ںیہن دہع اسیا یئوک ےن ینپمک روا ےہ ایگ ایک فاشکنا اک سج
 \۔تانایب ےک ینپمک ےیل ےک لاس ےلاو ےنوہ متخ وک 2022 نوج 30 ۔ےک ه روکذم ںیم تایلام هدش ٹڈآ ےئاوسام وہ
 :لیمعت ینوناق
 2017 ٹکیا زینپمک روا ںیہ ےیک لخاد زمراف/نرٹیر مامت ،ےہ یک لیمعت یک طئارش قلاطا لباق مامت ےن ینپمک نارود ےک لاس
 یک یزاس تسرہف روا طباوض ےک )SECP( ناتسکاپ فآ نشیمک جنیچسکیا ڈنیا زیٹرویکیس ،نیناوق کلسنم ےس سا روا

 ۔ںیہ یک مہارف تلایصفت ہقلعتم مامت تحت ےک تایرورض
 :زنشکیزنارٹ یٹراپ ہقلعتم
 ٹڈآ ہنلااس رپ سا ہک اسیج روا ںایسیلاپ یک ںوتمیق وگلا رپ شرافس یک یٹیمک ٹڈآ لومشب نید نیل مامت ھتاس ےک ںوقیرف ہقلعتم
 ۔ےہ یتاج ید یروظنم یک سا روا ےہ اتاج ایل هزئاج ہعیرذ ےک ڈروب ےہ ایگ ایک فاشکنا ںیم سٹون ےک ںوراوشوگ یتایلام هدش
 :یگدوجوم یک بیو

 ۔ںیہ یتکس اج یک لصاح رپ www.khybertextile.com ٹئاس بیو یک ینپمک تامولعم نیرت هزات ےس ےلاوح ےک ینپمک
 ۔ےہ لمتشم رپ جئاتن یتایلام نیرت هزات ےک ینپمک ھتاس ےک لئافورپ ےک ینپمک ٹئاس بیو
 :یراد ہمذ یجامس ٹیروپراک
 یک ںوبوصنم ےک دوبہب یجامس ںیم لبقتسم روا ےہ فقاو ےس یراد ہمذ یجامس روا ٹیروپراک ینپا ہیماظتنا یک ینپمک
 ۔یگ ےرک یئازفا ہلصوح
 :فارتعا
 شیپ ےس فرط یک نیمزلام ڈروب ۔ےہ اتہاچ انرک ادا ہیرکش اک نا ےیل ےک ےسورھب روا دامتعا ےک زرڈلوہ رئیش ےرامہ ڈروب
 ۔ےہ رازگ رکش روا فیرعت ینپا یھب ےیل ےک مزع روا نگل یلاو ےناج یک

 
 ےس بناج یک زرٹکیرئاڈ فآ ڈروب

 
  

 
 )رٹکیرئاڈ(  ناخ بیزگنروا بانج   )وٹکیزگیا فیچ رٹکیرئاڈ(نودج مدآ بانج
  روپ یرہ ریھڈلاب      روپ یرہ ریھڈلاب
   2022 ربمتس 26 - :خیرات     2022 ربمتس 26 - :خیرات
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019; Year Ended June 30, 2022, for Khyber Textile Mills Limited 

 
The Company has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019, (Regulations) in the following manner:- 
 
1. The total number of directors are 7 as per the following,-  
    a. Male: 6  
    b. Female: 1 
 
2. The composition of the Board is as follows:  
    i. Independent director 
        Mr. Hassan Ovais 
 
    ii. Female directors  
        Mrs. Aamna Jadoon 
 
    iii. Non-executive directors 
        Mr. Aurangzeb Khan 
        Mr. Amanullah Khan Jadoon 
        Mr. Muhammad Bahauddin 
        Mr. Omar Farid Jadoon 
        Mrs. Aamna Jadoon 
 
     iv. Executive directors 
         Mr. Adam Jadoon 
 
3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven          

listed companies, including this Company;  
 
4. The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken 

to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures;  
 
5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 

policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the 
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;  

 
6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been 

taken by the Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these 
Regulations;  

 
7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director 

elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and 
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the 
Board;  

 
8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in 

accordance with the Act and these Regulations;  
 
9. The following members of the Board have completed the Directors’ Training program:  

1. Mr. Adam Jadoon 
2. Mr. Muhammad Bahauddin 
3. Mrs. Aamna Jadoon 
4 Mr. Hassan Ovais 
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     While three other Directors are exempt from Directors Training Program due to their experience in 
the Board;  

 
10. The Board has approved the appointment of Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary and 

Head of Internal Audit including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and 
complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations; 

 
11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before 

approval of the Board;  
 
12. The Board has formed Committees comprising of Members given below.-  
a) Audit Committee 
     Mr. Hassan Ovais (Chairman) 
     Mr. Muhammad Bahauddin 
     Mrs. Aamna Jadoon 
 
b) HR and Remuneration Committee 
     Mr. Hassan Ovais (Chairman) 
     Mr. Muhammad Bahauddin 
     Mr. Adam Jadoon 
 
13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and shared with 

relevant Committees for compliance;  
 
14. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following,-  

a) Audit Committee; Four Quarterly Meetings during the financial year ended June 30, 2022 
b) HR and Remuneration Committee: One meeting during the financial year ended June 30, 2022; 

 
15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function who are suitably qualified and experienced 

for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company;  
 
16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory 

rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are 
in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as 
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the 
firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent 
children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, 
Company Secretary or Director of the Company;  

 
17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other 

services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement 
and that the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;   

 
18. We confirm that all other requirements of the regulations 3, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 have been 

complied with except Regulation No. 6 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019, i.e. the independent directors should not be less than two etc. Whereas as the 
Company has only one independent director out of total seven directors; and 
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19. Explanation for non-compliance with Regulation other than regulations 3, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 
are below: 

 
S. No. Requirement Explanation of Non-Compliance Regulation 

Number 
1. Independent Director 

Independent Director should be at least 
two or one third members of the 
Board. 

 
Currently, only one independent 
director on the board and the term of 
current board will be expiring in 
October 2022. The Management of the 
Company will fulfill the requirement of 
Regulation 6 in the upcoming elections 
of Directors that will be held in the next 
Annual General Meeting for the year 
2022. 

 
6 

2. Nomination Committee 
The Board may constitute a separate 
committee, designated as the 
nomination committee, of such number 
and class of directors, as it may deem 
appropriate in its circumstances. 
 

 
Currently, the Board has not constituted 
a separate nomination committee and 
the functions are being performed by 
the Human Resource and Remuneration 
committee 

 
29 
 

3. Risk Management Committee 
The Board may constitute the risk 
management committee, of such 
number and class of directors, as it 
may deem appropriate in its 
circumstances, to carry out a review of 
effectiveness of risk management 
procedures and present a report to the 
Board. 
 

 
Currently, the Board has not constituted 
a risk management committee and 
senior officers of the Company perform 
the requisite functions and apprise the 
Board accordingly. 

 
30 

 
 
 
 
 
 
MR. AURANGZEB KHAN 

CHAIRMAN 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT 
 

To the members of : KHYBER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED 
 

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of   
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 

 
We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of 
KHYBER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2022 in 
accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations. 
 
The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the 
Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight 
any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries 
of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply 
with the Regulations. 
 
As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the 
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit 
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control 
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the 
Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks. 
 
The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation 
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related 
party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent 
of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the 
Audit Committee. 
 
Following instance(s) of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations was / were observed 
which is/are not stated in the Statement of Compliance: 
 

Independent Directors – As per Regulation No. 6 of the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate     Governance) Regulations, 2019, the independent directors should not be less than 
two or one third of the total number of the board of directors, whichever is higher. The 
Company has only one independent director out of total seven directors. 

 
Based on our review, except for the above instance of non-compliance, nothing has come to our 
attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the 
Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as 
applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
 

 
        

Clarkson Hyde Saud Ansari 
Chartered Accountants         
Engagement Partner – Saud Ansari 
Karachi 
Dated: September 26, 2022 
UDIN CR202210149o9UY7RGBO 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
To the members of: KHYBER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Qualified Opinion 
We have audited the annexed financial statements of KHYBER TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED (the 
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2022, and the statement of 
profit or loss and other  comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained 
all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for 
the purposes of the audit. 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except 
for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report the 
statement of financial position, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in equity, and the statement of cash flows, together with the notes forming part 
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and 
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at June 30, 2022 of the 
loss and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended. 
Basis for Qualified Opinion 
During the year ended June 30, 2021 the Company had written back creditors amounting to 
Rs.18,122,154. The Company had been making efforts to contact the creditors to settle their liability, 
but there was no response in spite of repeated letters dispatched, therefore the Company decided to 
write back the same, as they have been outstanding for a very long time. In our opinion this write back, 
constitutes a departure from the International Financial Reporting Standards (Paragraph 3.3.1 of IFRS-
9). Had this write back not been made the Current Liabilities and the Accumulated Loss as on June 30, 
2022, would have been higher by this amount. 
The previous year’s audit opinion on the financial statements was also qualified with respect to this 
matter, therefore our opinion on the current year’s financial statements is also qualified because of the 
effects of this matter on the comparability of the current year’s figures and the corresponding figures. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of 
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan 
(the Code) and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe 
that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
We draw attention to Note 2.2 to the financial statements, which states that these financial statements 
have been prepared on going concern basis, yet there were factors which had affected the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in the past. Textile operations have been suspended since July 
2007. However, the Company changed its line of operations few years back and has been able to 
generate net cash inflows. The Company is solvent and the Management has concluded that no material 
uncertainty exists which cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as going concern. A 
detailed explanation is given in the aforesaid note. 

Key Audit Matter 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Following is the 
key audit matter: 
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S.No.                        Key Audit Matter How the Matter was addressed in our 
Audit 

 
1. 

 
Contingencies and Commitments 
 
Refer note 16 to the financial statements. The Company is 
subject to material litigations involving different courts 
pertaining to recovery, which requires management to 
make assessment and judgments with respect to likelihood 
and impact of such litigations on the financial statements of 
the Company.  
 
We have identified this as a key audit matter, because the 
nature and amounts involved in such cases and the 
appellate forums at which these are pending, the ultimate 
outcome and the resultant effect on the financial statements 
is subject to significant judgment, which can change over 
time as new facts emerge and each legal case progresses. 
 

 
Our procedures for verification in this matter and 
related disclosure included, but not limited to: 
 

• Discussed legal cases with the 
management to understand their point of 
view and obtained and reviewed the 
litigation documents in order to assess the 
facts and circumstances;  
 

• Obtained independent opinion of legal 
council’s dealing with such cases in the 
form of confirmation; and  

 
• Evaluated the possible outcome of these 

legal cases in line with the requirements 
of IAS 37: Provisions, Contingent 
Liabilities and Contingent assets. The 
disclosures of legal exposures and 
provisions were assessed for 
completeness and accuracy.  

 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements  
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements 
of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going  concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
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individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions 
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 
 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusion is based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.  However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in the internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies 
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017); 
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b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of 
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows, 
together with notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 
2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns; 
 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for 
the purpose of the Company’s business; and 
 

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Usher Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 
1980). 

 
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is SAUD ANSARI 
 
 
 
 
Clarkson Hyde Saud Ansari 
Chartered Accountants 
Date: September 26, 2022   
UDIN AR202210149gNHwdnZrb 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
 JUNE 30, 2022 

 
1.    CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION. 
 
Khyber Textile Mills Limited is a Public Limited Company, incorporated on 26th August, 1961 under 
the Companies Act, 1913 (Now the Companies Act, 2017). Its shares are quoted on the Pakistan Stock 
Exchange Limited. The activities of the Company were the manufacture and sale of cotton, polyester 
yarn and cloth, however due external factors the production was halted. Consequently the Company has 
been operating an agricultural livestock business on its vacant land since 2017, as a revised principal 
line of business of the Company that is agricultural, which was approved by the Registrar of Companies 
in September 2019. It has also been carrying on alternative business activities of renting excess 
buildings for warehousing and rental purposes since 2016. 
 
The geographical locations and addresses of Company's premises are as under: 

 
The registered office of the Company, the production facility and agricultural farms are located at 
Baldher, District Haripur, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa. 

 
2.   BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 
2.1 Statement of Compliance 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and                   
financial reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards 
applicable in Pakistan comprise of: 

 
-International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting  Standards    
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and 
 
-Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 

 
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the 
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed. 
 
2.2 Basis of Measurement 
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the    
revaluation of certain items of property, plant and equipment and inventory of livestock which is carried 
at fair value. In these financial statements, except for the amounts reflected in the cash flow statement, 
all transactions have been accounted for under the accrual basis of accounting. 
 
Going Concern Assumption 
These financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis, yet there were factors which had 
affected the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the past. Textile operations have been 
suspended since July 2007. The core reason for the adverse situation is the continued financial squeeze 
resulting from ongoing litigation in the High Courts (Reference note no. 16). Due to this the Company 
continues to appear on the SBP Credit Information Bureau Report as a defaulter of National Bank of 
Pakistan, which has caused a complete ban on access to credit. The continued litigation also restricts the 
Company to dispose-off its excess land to meet the BMR and working capital requirements to restart 
the textile unit. Consequently, most of the employees got laid-off and production of yarn was 
completely stopped in the financial year 2008 to avoid further losses. Furthermore, matters of resuming 
production have been complicated due to electric power load shedding, escalating power tariffs, 
restrictions on installation and use of industrial gas meter and generators. Nonetheless, the Members, 
Board of Directors, and Management are determined to rehabilitate and restart the textile unit once the 
funding is available from the Banks, for which Company's Management is diligently pursuing the High 
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Court cases so that they may reach finality and the credit facilities are restored. It is worth mentioning 
that National Bank of Pakistan lost its loan recovery suit instituted before the Banking Judge Peshawar 
High Court and is now using delaying tactics to avoid finalization of its appeal pending before the 
Honorable Peshawar High Court. 
 
Subsequent to the closure of textile operations the Company has made investments in an Agricultural 
Livestock Farm, while irrigation and water storage systems were constructed on the Company’s vacant 
land to facilitate fodder production. Further, Management has dedicated a substantial amount of the 
Company’s vacant land for the agricultural business i.e. livestock farm and for the production of 
crops/fodder for its cattle. The Company also successfully rented vacant buildings for warehousing etc. 
to reputable organizations and local distributers. The Management of the Company has been waiting for 
the revival of the production activities after outcome of the litigations in favor of the Company. There is 
also a legal obligation to keep the entity in existence till the final decision of the litigation commenced 
by the banks as disclosed in note No.16. 
 
Financial support is also available from the directors. During the year, one of the directors has also 
deferred his right to claim repayment of his loan for at least twelve months from the date of the 
financial statements; as a result the current assets have become almost equal to the current liabilities. 
The equity is positive and the Company has been generating positive cash flows from operations by 
way of its livestock business and renting out of buildings, for the last few years. The main cause of loss 
is the charging of depreciation on idle items of property, plant and equipment which had been revalued 
upward in 2019. This is a non cash expense which does not affect liquidity position of the Company. 
The Management has concluded that no material uncertainty exists which cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as going concern. 
 
2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency 
These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the company's functional and 
presentation currency. 
 
2.4 Use of Estimates and Judgments 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect 
the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. 
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors 
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of 
making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from 
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the 
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The estimates and 
judgments that have a significant effect on the financial statements are included in the following notes:- 
 
Depreciable amount and useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment 
In accordance with the accounting policy, the management carries out an annual assessment of 
depreciation amount and useful lives of assets. Further, the Company reviews the value of assets for 
possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the 
carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and equipment, with a corresponding effect on the 
depreciation charge and impairment.   
 
Biological Assets - Livestock 
The fair value of the biological assets (livestock) is determined annually by the Management of the 
Company which is based on market conditions and physical attributes of livestock existing at the end of 
each reporting period, which is subject to change at each period end due to market conditions. 
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Stores and Spares 
The Company reviews the net realizable value and impairment of stores and spares to assess any 
diminution in the respective carrying value and wherever required provision for impairment is made. 
The calculation of provision involves the use of estimates with regard to future estimated use and past 
consumption of stores and spares along with holding period. 
 
Income Taxes 
In making the estimates for income tax currently payable by the Company, the Management takes into 
account the current income tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the 
past. 
 
2.5 New standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards 
that are effective in the current year but are not relevant to the Company 
There are amendments to published standards that are mandatory for the current accounting period but 
are considered not to be relevant the Company’s financial statements and are therefore not detailed in 
these financial statements. 
 
2.6 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting   standards 
that are neither yet effective nor early adopted but relevant to the Company 
The following standards, amendments to IFRSs and improvements to accounting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective 
standards, amendments or improvements, and would be relevant to the Company: 
 
IAS 1 Classification of liabilities as current or non current          Effective date: January 1, 2023 
Under existing IAS 1 requirements, companies classify a liability as current when they do not have an 
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the 
reporting period. As part of these amendments, the requirement for a right to be unconditional has been 
removed and instead, the amendment requires that a right to defer settlement must have substance and 
exist at the end of the reporting period. 
 
IAS 1 Disclosure of accounting policies                                           Effective date: January 1, 2023 
Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ includes requiring companies to disclose 
their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies, clarifying that 
accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions are themselves 
immaterial and as such need not be disclosed and also clarifying that not all accounting policies that 
relate to material transactions, other events or conditions are themselves material to a company’s 
financial statements. 
 
IAS 8 Definition of accounting estimates                                          Effective date: January 1, 2023 
The International Accounting Standards Board (the Board) has issued these amendments to end 
diversity in treatment of accounting estimates and clarified how companies should distinguish changes 
in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates, with a primary focus on the definition of 
and clarifications on accounting estimates. Developing an accounting estimate includes both selecting a 
measurement technique (estimation or valuation technique) – e.g. an estimation technique used to 
measure a loss allowance for expected credit losses when applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and – 
choosing the inputs to be used when applying the chosen measurement technique – e.g. the expected 
cash outflows for determining a provision for warranty obligations when applying IAS 37 Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The effects of changes in such inputs or measurement 
techniques are changes in accounting estimates. 
 
IAS 12 Deferred Tax                                                                           Effective date: January 1, 2023 
The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to 
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. As a result, companies will 
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need to recognize a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising on 
initial recognition of a lease and a decommissioning provision. 
 
IAS 37 Onerous Contracts                                              Effective date: January 1, 2022 
Under IAS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, a contract is ‘onerous’ when 
the unavoidable costs of meeting the contractual obligations – i.e. the lower of the costs of fulfilling the 
contract and the costs of terminating it – outweigh the economic benefits. The amendments clarify that 
the ‘costs of fulfilling a contract’ comprise both the incremental costs – e.g. direct labour and materials; 
and an allocation of other direct costs – e.g. an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of 
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract. 
 
IAS 16 Proceeds before an asset’s intended use          Effective date: January 1, 2022 
Amendment to IAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ prohibit a company from deducting from the 
cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company 
is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, a company will recognize such sales proceeds and 
related cost in profit or loss. The amendments apply retrospectively, but only to items of PPE made 
available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in 
which the company first applies the amendments. 
 
3.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment 
These are stated at cost less depreciation. Depreciation is charged on pro- rata basis under reducing 
balance method at the rates mentioned in Note No. 5. Freehold land, building & civil works and plant & 
machinery are measured at revalued amounts, which is the fair value at the date of revaluation less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, recognized subsequent to the date 
of revaluation. Revaluation is carried out so that the fair value and carrying value do not differ 
materially at the balance sheet date. Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such assets is 
credited to "Surplus on Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment". A decrease in the carrying 
amount arising on revaluation is charged to the statement of comprehensive income to extent that it 
exceeds the balance, if any, held in the surplus on revaluation to a previous revaluation of that asset. 
The surplus on revaluation- net of deferred tax to the extent of incremental depreciation charged on the 
related revalued assets is transferred to un appropriated profit. Revaluation is carried out so that the fair 
value and carrying value do not differ materially at the balance sheet date. Any revaluation increase 
arising on the revaluation of such assets is credited to "Surplus on Revaluation of Property, Plant and 
Equipment". A decrease in the carrying amount arising on revaluation is charged to the statement of 
comprehensive income to extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the surplus on revaluation of 
fixed assets to a previous revaluation of those assets. The surplus on revaluation- net of deferred tax to 
the extent of incremental depreciation charged on the related revalued assets is transferred to un 
appropriated profit. 
 
In case of additions to fixed assets depreciation is charged from the month addition is made and in case 
of disposal of items of fixed assets up to the month the asset has been in use of the Company. 
 
The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at each financial 
year end. The effect of any adjustment in residual value and useful lives is recognized prospectively as 
a change of accounting estimates. 
 
Repairs and maintenance of major amounts are capitalized, while normal repair and maintenance of 
assets are charged to the income as and when incurred. 
 
Gains and losses on disposal of assets, if any, are taken to the profit and loss account. 
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3.2 Inventory - Livestock (Biological Assets) 
Livestock are measured at their fair value. Initially cost incurred in acquisition of biological assets is 
also added in cost likewise transportation, labor etc. along with cost of feed and vaccination. 
 
Gain / (Loss) arising, if any, from changes in fair value of livestock is recognized in profit or loss 
account. 
 
3.3 Stores and Spares 
These are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value using moving average cost method except 
items in transit which are valued at cost accumulated up to the balance sheet date. Cost comprises 
purchase cost and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition. Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business 
less the cost necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sale. The Company reviews the carrying 
amount of stores on regular basis and provision is made for obsolescence, if any. 
 
3.4 Financial Instruments 
The Company follows IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” in respect of financial instruments. 
 
Financial Assets 
The standard prescribes three classification and measurement models for financial assets as follows: 
 
* Measured at Amortized Cost 
* Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) 
* Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) 
 
Measured at Amortized Cost 
A financial asset shall be measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose 
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows which arise on specified dates and 
that are solely principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
 
Amortized cost is determined using the effective interest rate method and gains and losses including 
impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 
 
For financial assets measured at amortized cost, IFRS 9 requires recognition of impairment based on 
expected credit loss (ECL) model rather than incurred credit loss model as previously required under 
IAS 39. Under IFRS 9, the Company is required to measure loss allowance of an amount equal to 
lifetime ECL or 12 months ECL based on credit risk. 
 
Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) 
A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, if it is held within a 
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
financial assets, and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash 
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
 
Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) 
A financial asset that does not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCI is measured at FVTPL. 
 
Financial Liabilities 
The Company classifies financial liabilities as follows: 
 

• Measured at Amortized Cost. 
• Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss   (FVTPL) 
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Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost, as required by para 4.2.1 of IFRS-9, unless they are 
required to be measured at FVTPL (such as derivatives) vide aforesaid para of IFRS-9 or has opted to 
measure them at FVTPL as per para 4.2.2 of the IFRS-9. 
 
Recognition of Financial Instruments 
The Company initially recognizes financial assets on the date when they are originated. Financial 
liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date when the entity becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. 
 
Initial Measurement of Financial Instruments 
At initial recognition a financial asset or financial liability, except trade receivables, is measured at fair 
value, plus or minus, in the case of financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or 
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to acquisition or issue of financial asset or financial 
liability. 
 
3.4.2   Trade and Other Payables 
Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are initially recognized at fair value, which is normally 
the transaction cost. Subsequently they are measured at amortized cost. 
 
3.4.3    Borrowings 
Markup bearing borrowings are recognized initially at cost, less attributable transaction cost. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, markup bearing borrowings are stated at amortized cost with any 
difference between cost and redemption value being recognized in the income statement over the period 
of the borrowings on an effective interest basis. 
 
3.4.4    Offsetting of Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only 
when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and intends either 
to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
 
3.5   Taxation 
 
Current 
The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rate of taxation after taking 
into account applicable tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any, or minimum taxation on 
the turnover under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, whichever is higher. 
 
Deferred 
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method for all temporary difference at the balance sheet date 
between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial statements reporting 
purposes. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax 
assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that taxable profit will be 
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be 
utilized. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of 
the assets to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the asset 
is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the balance sheet date. 
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3.6    Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and current 
and deposit accounts with the commercial banks. 
 
3.7    Revenue Recognition 
The Company follows IFRS 15 for recognition of revenue from contracts with customers. The Standard 
provides a single five-step model for revenue recognition and establishes a comprehensive framework 
for recognition of revenue from contracts with customers based on a core principle that an entity should 
recognize revenue representing the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount 
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or 
services. The standard provides a contract-based revenue recognition model with a measurement 
approach that is based on an allocation of the transaction price. If the consideration promised in a 
contract includes a variable amount such as discounts, rebates and refunds, any potential bonuses 
receivable from the customer and any other contingent events, such estimates are determined using 
either the 'expected value' or 'most likely amount' method. The measurement of variable consideration 
is subject to a constraining principle whereby revenue will only be recognized to the extent that it is 
highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not 
occur. 
 
Sale of Animals 
The performance obligation is satisfied at the point in time when the animals are handed over to the 
customers. 

 
Rent Income 
The performance obligation is satisfied at the point in time when the rent becomes due in accordance 
with the rental contracts. 
 

4.     CORRECTION OF PRIOR PERIOD ERROR 
In prior years deferred tax effect on revaluation of building on free hold land had inadvertently been 
calculated, as a result the revaluation surplus on free hold land, the related deferred tax liability and 
deferred tax shown in the statement of profit or loss was reported at inaccurate amounts. The deferred 
tax effect of other temporary differences was also omitted, which affected the profit or loss after tax in 
prior years. The errors have been corrected during the current year. The effects of the corrections have 
been incorporated in the financial statements, by restating each of the affected items for the prior 
periods, as follows: 
 
Statement of Financial Position 
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16. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS. 
 
Pending Litigations 
 
National Bank of Pakistan vs. Company: 
During the 1990’s, NBP’s policy towards the Company of denial of working capital and placing restrictions on 
access to long-term BMR funds that the Company required in order to stay competitive in the textile market led to 
losses for the Company. Due to the bank’s coercive methods, the Company agreed to the Bank’s offer of placing 
the outstanding dues for consideration before the Committees appointed by the Federal Government to revive sick 
industrial units. These Committees had been formed in 1997 on the directives of the Prime Minister of Pakistan 
and given a mandate by the State Bank of Pakistan to assist industries in genuine distress due to credit restrictions. 
The Committee’s authority and binding nature of recommendations was confirmed through issuance of SBP 
Circular No. 19, which stated that after a decision is made by the Committee, “in case no objection is received 
within seven days from the date of decision of the Committee, it will be deemed as final.” Moreover, further SBP 
Circulars were also issued, directing NBP and other commercial banks to follow the decisions of the Government 
mandated Committee. The Committee checked and examined the facts, determining that the Company’s case was 
genuine and hence accepted the Company’s case, which was referred to the Committee by NBP. The Bank’s 
Senior Management nominated Executive Vice President/Deputy Regional Chief Executive of National Bank of 
Pakistan who took part in the proceedings of Committee No.5 robustly; the positions of both sides were laid bare 
before the Committee. NBP submitted its total outstanding liabilities amounting to Rs.7.4 Million, which were 
accepted by the Committee. The Committee decided that repayment of the liability in installments and 
determination of debenture loan in accordance with earlier recommendations made by Industrial Rehabilitation 
Committee (IRC). The recommendations were appropriately conveyed to NBP for confirmation indicating that in 
case no response is received within 7 days, the decision shall become final. After receiving 3 installments from the 
Company in accordance with the Committee’s directions, NBP issued a letter, 9 months after receipt of 
Committee’s decision, stating that the Committee’s recommendations have not been accepted and that it was 
instituting suit for recovery of liabilities. Despite this, the Company continued to abide by the binding decisions of 
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Committee No. 5 and repaid NBP’s entire loan including interest amounting to Rs.9.57 million. Although the 
decisions of the Committee were applicable and binding, in 1998 NBP filed a lawsuit against the Company in the 
Peshawar High Court for recovery of Rs.437 Million, erroneously calculated on basis of loans from the 1970s and 
1980s, thereby ignoring the binding decisions of the IRC (1982/1986) and Committee Number 5 (1997). 
 
Company’s Management and Legal Team are pleased to inform that the National Bank of Pakistan versus Khyber 
Textile Mills Ltd. Suit has been decided in favor of the Company by the Honorable Peshawar High Court (PHC) 
on 17-03-2014. The judgment is based on the legal and factual aspects, in which the Honorable Banking Judge has 
determined that the Company had indeed paid all outstanding dues to NBP, in accordance with the decision of 
Committee No.5 constituted by Federal Government in 1997. It was also held by the Honorable Banking Judge 
that the State Bank of Pakistan had issued Circulars constituting these Committees, in which SBP directed the 
Banks to follow the decisions of the Committee. Consequently, based on these facts NBP’s suit was dismissed by 
the PHC. However, in order to coerce the Company to submit to its unjust demands, NBP filed an appeal in the 
Peshawar High Court, and as of September 2022, arguments on appeal are pending. Nonetheless, Company's 
Management and legal team will continue to defend NBP's appeal vigorously. Therefore, no liability has been 
recorded against this case amounting to Rs.437 million. 
 
ICP, National Bank of Pakistan and Others vs. Company 
The Hon’ble Sindh High Court (SHC) vide its order dated 24/02/2010 has set aside the ex-parte Judgment and 
Decree fraudulently obtained by ICP, NBP & Others based on observing that the Banks had not served legal 
notice to the Company’s registered address in Baldher, Haripur, NWFP (now KP). Further, due to the Banks 
fraudulent statement of accounts and inflated calculations in their original suit, their claim against the Company 
was revised downwards by the Court to Rs.50 Million. Subsequently, the Honorable Sindh High Court Judge 
ordered KTML to file a Leave to Defend application so that the case may proceed with both sides present. The 
Company then filed a Leave to Defend Application, which was then admitted by the SHC in 2016, following 
which evidence has been concluded. As of September 2022, the matter is at the stage of final argument. 
 
Furthermore, the suit’s decisions are pending on issues of res judicata, jurisdiction and limitation raised by the 
Company’s Attorney in the SHC. The Company’s Management and legal team are optimistic that this suit has no 
standing and will be dismissed as NBP has filed two suits for recovery of the same loan in two different High 
Courts. Additionally, the Company’s position is that this suit is time barred as these loans were issued in 1970’s 
and 1980’s and all outstanding loans determined by Industrial Rehabilitation Committee and Committee Number 
5 have been repaid to the creditors. Finally, a judgment on these issues in the Company’s favor has already been 
given by the Honorable Peshawar High Court on 17-03-2014, which has been submitted by our attorney in the 
Honorable Sindh High Court. 
 
It must be noted that the Banks are actively avoiding the finalization of litigation by evading arguments before the 
Honorable High Courts so as to extend their financial squeeze and pressurize the Company to give in to their 
unjust demands. Nonetheless, our legal advisors are making efforts to obtain further favorable decisions from the 
Courts in order, to end this long-standing litigation. No provision is required against this case liability. 
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FORM OF PROXY 
 
 
I/We______________________________________________________________________________________of 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(full address) being a member of Khyber Textile Mills Limited having Folio #________________________do 

hereby appoint Mr./Ms.__________________________________________ having Folio#___________________ 

of __________________________________________________________________(full address) (or failing him) 

Mr./Ms.______________________________________________________ having Folio# ___________________ 

of_______________________________________________________________________________(full address) 
I being another Member of the Company as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf, at the 

Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday 21st, October 2022 at 10:00 a.m.  and to every 

adjournment thereof. 
And witness my/our hand/seal this _____________day of ______________________2022, signed by the above- 

named Shareholder  

 

 

_______________________________________________ 

in the presence of:   
 
WITNESSES: 
1. Signature______________________________________    2. Signature________________________________ 

Name ________________________________________     Name____________________________________            

Address_______________________________________       Address__________________________________ 

CNIC/NICOP/POC or Passport No.                     CNIC/NICOP/POC or Passport No. 

__________________________________________         ___________________________________________ 
 CDC Account No. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Important Notes 
1. A Member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may only appoint another 

Member as his/her proxy to attend and vote 
2. The Proxy Form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC/NICOP/POC or Passport 

number shall be mentioned on the form. 
3. Copies of CNIC/NICOP/POC or Passport of the appointer and proxy-holder shall be furnished with the Proxy 

Form. 
4. The proxy-holder shall produce his/her original CNIC/NICOP/POC or Passport at the time of the meeting. 
5. This Proxy Form must be duly completed and signed and received at the Registered Office of the Company, not 

less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.  
6. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / Power of Attorney with specimen signature shall 

be submitted along with Proxy Form. 

  
Revenue Stamp of Rs. 5/- 


